
 

 

 

 CITY OF PINE LAKE, GEORGIA 

REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

APRIL 25, 2023 @ 7:00PM 

459 PINE DRIVE, PINE LAKE, GA 30072 

NOTE: All attendees are reminded to silence cellular phones and other 
devices that may cause interruption of the session proceedings.  

 

Call to Order  
 

Announcements/Communication 
 

Adoption of Agenda of the Day 
 

Adoption of the Minutes 

• Regular Meeting – April 11, 2023 
 

Public Comments – 3 minutes each please 
 

Old Business 
 

New Business 
 

1. Swearing in of Police Department Reserve Officers  
 

2. Council’s Confirmation of Stephanie Kohler’s Appointment to the 
Municipal Arts Panel – Mayor Melanie Hammet 
 

3. Alcohol Privilege License Application – Mango’[s Caribbean 
Restaurant, 4634 Rockbridge Road, Pine Lake, GA – Matthew Nelson, 
applicant and owner 

4. Update and Request for Funding – Juneteenth 2023 – Mayor pro tem 
Jean Bordeaux and Councilmember Augusta Woods, presenters 

5. Public Finance Leadership Academy – Support for City Manager 
Thornton’s Program Application – Program Tuition/Exp - $3,090 

6. Resolution R-10-2023 – FY2023 Budget Amendment  

 

REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Public Comments – 3 minutes each please 
 

Staff Reports 
Administration  
Public Safety  
Public Works  
 

Reports/Comments  
 Mayor  

             City Council 
 

Information for “The Pine Lake News” eblast.  
Adjournment 

 

 

 
MAYOR 

MELANIE HAMMET  
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Jean Bordeaux, Mayor pro tem 

Tracey Brantley 

Nivea Castro 

Brandy Hall 

Augusta Woods 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

ChaQuias Miller-Thornton 

City Manager 
 

Sarai Y’Hudah-Green 

Chief of Police 
 

Missye Varner 

Administrative Coordinator 
 

Susan Moore 

City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF PINE LAKE 

425 ALLGOOD ROAD 

P.O. BOX 1325 

PINE LAKE, GA 30072 

 

404-999-4901 

 

www.pinelakgega.net  

 

http://www.pinelakgega.net/


CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

1 

 

 

NOTE: All attendees are reminded to silence cellular phones and other devices that 
may cause interruption of the session proceedings.  
 

Call to Order Mayor Melanie Hammet called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

Present: Mayor Melanie Hammet, Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux and Council 

members Brandy Hall, Augusta Woods, Tracey Brantley and Nivea Castro. City 

Manager    ChaQuias Miller-Thornton, Chief of Police Sarai Y’Hudah-Green, 

Administrative Coordinator Missye Varner and City Attorney Susan Moore were 

also present.  

 

Announcements/Communication 

Mayor Hammet communicated that the Easter Egg Hunt and PLAIN Breakfast held 

on April 8th was a great success and was well attended with approximately 30-50 of 

the resident children. 

Mayor Hammet communicated that on April 8th the Pine Lake Lounge had a packed 

house with attendance by the Mayor herself, and special guests State Rep. Viola 

Davis-Johnson, City of Avondale Estates Mayor Jonathan Elmore, Commissioner 

Steve Bradshaw and likely commissioner candidate Gabrielle Rodgers.  A great 

time was had by everyone that attended. 

Mayor Pro tem Bordeaux announced that on April 13th at 6:30pm there will be a 

Juneteenth Planning Meeting at the Club House to prepare for the second annual 

Juneteenth celebration and welcomed all to attend and to bring their creative ideas. 

 Special Presentation – Eloise and Craig Luke 

Eloise and Craig Luke of neighboring Roland Road presented to the City a 

beautifully framed photograph of the beach/lake taken by Eloise Luke.  The couple 

stated that the photograph was being gifted to the city to enjoy as much as they had 

for years. 

 
Adoption of Agenda of the Day 
 
Council Member Hall motioned to adopt the agenda, seconded by Council Member 
Woods, the adoption of the agenda passed unanimously. 
 

 



CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

2 

 

 
Adoption of the Minutes 

• Regular Meeting – March 28, 2023 
 

Mayor pro tem Bordeaux motioned to adopt the agenda, seconded by Council 
Member Woods, the adoption of the agenda passed unanimously. 
 
Public Comments – 3 minutes each please 
 
There were no public comments at this time.  
 
Old Business 
 
There was not any Old Business.  
 
New Business 
 

1. Consent of Council to Announce Intent to Take Action – Propose Increase of 

Mayor and Council Salary 

City Manager Miller-Thornton presented and answered questions related to the process 

for Council to take action on a proposed increase for Mayor and Council salaries.  The 

process, per Georgia law, includes advertisement in the legal organ of the Council’s 

intent to take action.  If action is taken that increases the salaries of Mayor and Council, 

the act will not take effect until 2024. 

Council Member Castro motioned to approve the Consent of Council to Announce Intent 

to Take Action – Proposed Increase of Mayor and Council Salary, seconded by Mayor 

pro tem Bordeaux, the approval of the consent passed unanimously. 

2. Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency- GMA Property & Liability Self 

Insurance – $35,271 

 

City Manager Miller-Thornton presented the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management 

Agency- GMA Property & Liability Self Insurance – $35,271 terms for the years of 2023-

2024.  Council Member Brantley motioned to approve the renewal terms of Georgia 

Interlocal Risk Management Agency- GMA Property & Liability Self Insurance, seconded 

by Mayor pro tem Bordeaux, the approval passed unanimously. 

 

 



CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

3 

 

 

3. Resolution R-09-2023 – Budget Amendment – General Fund FY 2023 and 

Capital Projects Fund FY 2023 

 

City Manager Miller-Thornton provided explanation of the proposed budget amendment.  

Council Member Hall motioned to adopt Resolution R-09-2023 – Budget Amendment – 

General Fund FY 2023 and Capital Projects Fund FY 2023; seconded by Council 

Member Woods, the adoption of the resolution passed unanimously. 

 

REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Public Comments – 3 minutes each please 
 
There were no public comments at this time.  
 
Staff Reports 
 
Administration  
 
City Manager Miller-Thornton presented the following department reports within the 
City Manager’s report. 
 
Municipal Court 

 
Employment Position: 
 

• Job description for the position of City Clerk/Court Clerk has been drafted.  
As approved by Council, the position will continue to be a hybrid 
administrative position that services Administration, Court and Police 
department administrative functions. The salary increase is proposed for 
the position. 

 

• $35,048 was allocated for salaries/wages at FY2023 budget adoption 
suspecting full year fulfillment of the position.  Anticipating a June 2023 
placement for the City Clerk/Court Clerk position, only $28,160 will be 
required for funding of salary/wages for the position. 

 
Public Works 

• The Administration has researched purchasing options for purchase of a new 
or used leaf machine.  The suggestion is that the asset be acquired with  



CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

4 

 

 

American Rescue Plan Act funds.  The item was discussed during the 
03/25/2023 Council retreat. The Admin Office has begun receiving cost 
proposals for the equipment. Public work is currently reviewing the proposals 
for requested equipment options. 

• Public works continues to conduct leaf pick-up on and around the City’s streets 
and is working towards completing the requirements for this year’s MS4 report.  
The report period ends 04/30/2023. 

Current City Projects: 

• Ongoing: On 03/28/203 Council approved proposal for Clark Patterson Lee to 
conduct bid document and construction plan composition and construction  
administration for rebuilding the inner berm bridges.  Soil test and drilling is 
scheduled for April 22, 2023 from 8am-5pm. The next step is for the 
Administration Office to coordinate with Clark Patterson Lee regarding bid 
document dates. 

 
Poplar Park 
 
Statement of Work (COVID-19) is being composed for submittal to Commissioner 
Lorraine Cochran-Johnson’s Office in expectation of funding for the development of 
Poplar Park.  Report submittal to the Commissioner’s office is anticipated by week’s end. 

 
Administrative Matters 
Applications/Licenses: 

The Administration has processed 24 business license renewals and 2 alcohol 
license renewals for the 2023 year.  

 
Council is scheduled to hear alcohol privilege license application for Mangos 
Caribbean restaurant on April 25th, 2023.  The item will be heard during the regular 
meeting of Mayor and Council. 

 
Policy/Procedures Drafts: 
Personnel Policy draft is nearing completion.  The Administration Office will present 
process for review and re-write of the personnel policy handbook on 04/11/2023. 

 
Required Reporting: 
My office is preparing required report under American Rescue Plan Act provisions.  The 
report is due April 30th, 2023. 



CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

5 

 

 
Education and Training: 
As of 04/04/2023 City Manager Miller-Thornton has completed the GMA human resource 
certification program. 

 
Public Safety  
 

• Chief Green presented and participated in discussion of the Agency Activity 

Reports generated by Courtware Rare Element Solutions software for the 

Police Department.  These resourceful reports will be distributed at council 

meetings quarterly.  

• Chief Green stated that congratulations are in order to Pine Lake Police 

Departments Cpl. Jason Cooper.  The Pine Lake Police Department received a 

“Good Letter” on March 12, 2023, from DeKalb County Sheriff’s Department 

regarding an incident Cpl. Cooper assisted the county in.  The commendation 

letter was in reference to his assistance in safely apprehending a suspect that 

was in a stolen vehicle attempting to flee. The subject had a concealed 

handgun in his pants where he was reaching for during the arrest.    

• Chief Green reported that the new officers will be sworn in at the April 25th City 

Council meeting. 

Copies of the Administration/Public Works/Court and Public Safety reports are on file in 

City Hall for reviewing. Please email missyevarner@pinelakega.net  to request a copy or 

call 404-999-4931 to schedule an appointment to review the copy on file. 

Reports/Comments  
  Mayor  
 
Mayor Hammet inquired about a solution to restrict the open carry law for weapons.  
There was discussion and City Attorney Moore stated that the State of Georgia 
Legislature has taken away much of the authority for cities to govern restrictions and 
laws and that she will conduct research on the matter.   
 

City Council 
 
 There were not any City Council comments. 

 
 
 

mailto:missyevarner@pinelakega.net


CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

6 

 

 
Information for “The Pine Lake News” eblast.  
 

Congratulations to Pine Lake Police Department’s Corporal Jason Cooper. 
 
The Pine Lake Police Department received a “Good Letter” on March 12, 2023, regarding 
Corporal Jason Cooper's assistance in an incident in DeKalb County. The commendation 
letter described his assistance in safely apprehending a suspect that was in a stolen 
vehicle attempting to flee. The subject had a concealed handgun and reached for it 
during the arrest. Thank you, Officer Cooper, Job well done! #TeamWork 
#EveryoneGoesHome 

  Special Thanks to Neighbors of Pine Lake, Eloise and Craig Luke 

Mr. and Mrs. Luke presented the City of Pine Lake with a beautiful original photograph of 
our lake taken by Mrs. Luke. The Luke’s reside nearby on Rowland Road and enjoy 
walking around Pine Lake. The photograph has been hanging in their home, but after 
making some décor changes, they decided that it was time that someone else enjoyed it. 

We feel so lucky and honored that they decided to give the photograph to the city. You 

will be able to see the photograph when you attend Council Meetings and other events in 

the Council Chambers. 

Pollination Celebration April 23rd from 1:00 PM to 5:00 PM 
 
The Municipal Arts Panel (MAP) and Stewards for Environmental Education and Design 
(SEED) join forces once again with a Pollination Celebration. The event will take place on 
the park side of the Beach House and will include a nature walk, live music, food and 
drink, plant sale, seed exchange, education, information and so much more. Come and 
join your neighbors in welcoming all Spring pollinators to Pine Lake. 
 

Project to Restore the Two Bridges on the Inner Berm 
 
The first step for this project will commence on Saturday April 22nd. Between 8:00 AM 
and 5:00 PM soil testing will be taking place at the site of the two bridges. There will be 
drilling for soil samples and there may be some noise associated with the project. 
 
Food Assistance Available to Pine Lake Neighbors 
 
PLAIN’s Neighbor to Neighbor (N2N) program assists Pine Lake neighbors in need. If 
you or someone you know is food insecure or needs other assistance, please call 404 
491-0774 and leave a message. A volunteer will call back to discuss needs and help  

https://4nmuh.r.a.d.sendibm1.com/mk/cl/f/0la3qAp6RAwoWTdprtNixogc_8Yu7IuANlmexSTZwE-USz-mlNkZcLtdEkd_5AOrTdo2BoTJojILk9pVLQLYHf8W3JdAkNKK_ubMgqcIRqQzIB35onIMdLEDT_eGz6t4OhkPJkpZCqVrz_13Qrw4YYhbsWcaZigplmR-q_pgtojHXBx2vrS-ypkZmt5EpCSKiiqJQ17s0gcnscxyyiDrLYdKs2HgRQew1o_ZITdB5Kmi_C8Z1Dw1gpTViVWdU4_1gbHWY2E9cJRBDLm9jOZjDgzBhQ0u14xC4kTn7uT0fQ60V0lvqHPyiv12-wptpmCL8mCppqJOpJRyf0JoiqO54d8jdx6FnVlKMgCntwDCTZ4xJa1dQfzoo7m3VeRjpgUJTqKKoY8WKETqhE-3Rti-
https://4nmuh.r.a.d.sendibm1.com/mk/cl/f/UiEgbCtIjFNbTCuCwhg_5oEZtI5bi_swXQblgYwqV7u9R2CTnUWjysYk5mtdF1LNFVGGOdNscLiIIuWPdIZy7sUDn6s_zXB5-OjMzRVn2s5J1W1aWbClbcxhO1ODgClRrDfBOUJxZ6rENDWVPE1MgcfwFhOTyn21lNBllfxI4m5g8CsBQXtpe-TFbGD0qrDmGLnzmzRvN0lRoFKnMK6LAAtdxKyGGESAe6_lhbMEo_fws2fcSh6Qg92KhoTOZpkb-1YnShEfr_fgHGd9wDxEY_mhpQFIFEx7NND9Qy-BUOQ-qJh_MC4UP5mea5MIvxESQtY-duiBSzDO2yL1TheQ_Jg2


CITY OF PINE LAKE 

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 11, 2023 at 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 

459 Pine Drive, Pine Lake, GA 

7 

 

 

available. All contacts are kept confidential. 
 
Adjournment Council Member Woods motioned to adjourn at 8:00 pm; seconded by 
Mayor pro tem Bordeaux and passed unanimously. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

 
 Missye Varner, Administrative Coordinator 



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
DATE: April 21, 2023 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: ChaQuias Thornton 

RE: Swearing-in of Reserve Public Safety Officers 

 
Police Chief Y-Hudah-Green will publicly present/introduce new public safety officers to Council for 
Mayor Hammet to administer the oath of office for reserve officer duty.    
 
Please join us in welcoming these officers as community partners in our City’s public safety efforts. 

 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
DATE: April 21, 2023 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: ChaQuias Thornton 

RE: Council’s Confirmation of the Appointment of Stephanie Kohler to the Pine Lake 
Municipal Arts Panel 

 
Mayor Melanie Hammet has selected Stephanie Kohler to be a member of the Municipal Arts Panel – 
a standing committee of the City of Pine Lake.  In accordance with Charter Section 2.43, “All standing 
committees shall be appointed by a majority vote of the council.” 

       
Confirmation of Council’s appointment of Stephanie Kohler to the Municipal Arts Panel is scheduled 
for the 4/25/2023 meeting of Mayor and Council. 
 
 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
DATE: April 21, 2023 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: ChaQuias Thornton 

RE: Alcohol Privilege License Application – Mangos Caribbean Restaurant – 4634 

Rockbridge Road 

 

Matthew Nelson (owner) has presented alcoholic beverages privilege license application to the City 

of Pine Lake for Mayor and Council consideration. Application is scheduled to be heard by Council 

during the public meeting to be held on Tuesday, April 25th, 2023.  Attached, please find redacted 

copy of the license application for Council review.  Required notice has been published in the local 

news organ as evidenced by the attached publishers affidavit.  Any required documentation that is 

not presently on file with the City is expected to be received in advance of the hearing date and is 

noted within page 7 of the application. 

 

Please do contact the Administration Office if you should have any questions regarding this matter. 

 

 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 

































The Champion Newspaper 
PO Box 1347 
Decatur, GA 30031-1347 

CITY OF PINE LAKE 
P .0. BOX 1325 
PINE LAKE, GA 30072 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF DEKALB 

PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT 

Phone: 
Fax: 

(404) 373-7779
(404) 371-1359

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public within and for said county and state, 
Carolyn J. Glenn, Publisher of The Champion Newspaper, published at Decatur, County of DeKalb, State of 
Georgia, and being the official organ for the publication of legal advertisements for said county, who being 
duly sworn, states on oath that the report of Mangos Caribbean Restaurant, 4634 Rockbridge Road was 
published in said newspaper on the following date(s): 

04/06/23, 04/13/23 

cAROLY.G �N,PLISHER  

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 04/14/23. 

N�Pt��� 

My commission expires August 01, 2026 

THE OFFICIAL LEGAL ORGAN OF DEKALB COUNTY 



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
DATE: April 21, 2023 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: ChaQuias Thornton 

RE: Juneteenth 2023 Update and Request for Event Funding 

 
Mayor pro tem Jean Bordeaux and Councilwoman Augusta Woods will present an update on 
program planning for the Juneteenth 2023 Event.   They will also present request for $300.00 in 
event funding for Council consideration. 
 
Please refer to proposed Resolution R-10-2023 – FY2023 Budget Amendment 

 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor and City Council   

 

From: ChaQuias Thornton, City Manager   

  

Date: April 20, 2023 
 

Re: Public Finance Leadership Academy 
 

 
New Business – April 25, 2023 Regular Council Meeting 
 
Please see the attached flyer for information regarding the new program offered by the University of 
Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the Georgia Government Finance Officer’s Association.  
The new program, entitled The Public Finance Leadership Academy (PFLA) is an innovative professional 
development program that combines the latest in leadership and financial management training.  The 
program also focuses on the legal framework and human interactions that are often not considered in 
financial management scenarios.   
 
As a Certified Finance Officer and a member of the Government Finance Officers Association that has 
operated within the confines of small city budgets and limited resources, I understand the importance of 
achieving financial excellence in public finance.  This achievement helps to enhance a manager’s ability to 
approach challenging financial situations in innovative ways that reach well beyond the normal line-item 
budget and cash flow analysis measures that become the norm.  For example, in one of the latest 
continuing education trainings offered by the Georgia Finance Officers Association, I was able to learn 
about the necessity of program and priority-based budgeting as an alternative to line-item based 
budgeting.  I have begun implementation of that concept into this year’s budget proposal for a different, 
and more efficient, need-based approach to recommending budget appropriations.  
 
Additionally, the approach to strategic planning scenarios must be coupled with administrative and 
operational skills as well as treasury management related skills.  Most strategic planning scenarios will 
require “dollar sign” data and advanced fiscal management analysis to aid in the successful 
implementation of such planning.  Programs like the one offered by the PFLA offer such data gathering 
and analytical training. 
 
 
Prerequisite for the program:  
Successful completion of the Level II Finance Officer Certification or completion of Level I with progress 
towards Level II; alternatively, candidates who hold certain financial professional designations: Certified 
Public Accountant (CPA), Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM), Certified Public Finance 
Officer (CPFO) will be eligible for consideration without meeting the Level I and Level II requirement. 
 
I have completed and currently maintain Level I and Level II Finance Officer Certifications through the 
University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of Government in cooperation with the Association of County  



PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 
 
 
Commissioners of Georgia and the Georgia Municipal Association.  I would therefore qualify for 
application to the program. 
 
The program is scheduled to run from October 2023 through May 2024. 
 
 
Application: 
Application, essay, and letter of recommendation/support from City are required for consideration for 
program acceptance.  Application deadline is September 1, 2023.  No application fee is assessed. 
 
 
Request: 
I am asking that Mayor and Council consider funding program tuition and expenses for my participation in 
the PFLA program.   

• Program cost is $2,799 and offers up to 91.90 CPE credit hours.  A required number of CPEs are 
necessary to maintain the current finance officer certifications that I hold.  Completion of the 
courses offered in the PFLA program can count towards CPE requirements for maintaining current 
certifications.    

• Travel cost is dependent upon the number of in-person course sessions attended during the 
program.  Four of the 12 sessions are mandatory in-person attendance and eight of the sessions 
are a hybrid option.  The following is presented as an estimate of the expense for mandatory in-
person sessions only:    
 

o 109.6 miles/session x $0.655/mile IRS rate = $71.79 x 1 sessions = $71.79  
o 46.2 miles/session x $0.655/mile IRS rate = $30.27 x 3 sessions =   $90.81 

   $162.60 
 

Program/travel funding of $2,962 can be expensed with no increase in allocation to the current year’s 
budget.  Please reference proposed Resolution R-10-2023. 
 
Do feel free to present any questions or concerns regarding. 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 



PFLA

Announcing  a new signature program offered
in partnership between the Institute and GGFOA. 
The Public Finance Leadership Academy (PFLA) 
will equip new and emerging public sector financial 
management leaders with the knowledge they need 
to successfully manage and communicate at all 
levels of government.  

Participants in this 6-month cohort program will work 
with a robust slate of experts diverse in background, 
talents and expertise.        

Building on a Foundation of Success

For years, the Georgia Government Finance Officers 
Association and the Carl Vinson Institute of Government 
have partnered to bring professional development 
opportunities to finance professionals across the  
State of Georgia as a means of promoting excellence  
in public finance.    

The Level I and Level II Finance Officer Certification 
programs provide foundational knowledge and 
technical skills in a number of areas that are critical  
to the financial management of local governments  
or authorities. 

Our new Public Finance Leadership Academy builds 
upon these foundational steps, offering a distinguished 
training experience that combines technical know-
how with leadership prowess. The result is the latest 
expertise in government finance and leadership.  

Public Finance
Leadership Academy

INNOVATIVE
and specialized 

professional  
development program

TIMELY
and relevant

curriculum content

COMPREHENSIVE
and challenging
certificate track

TARGETED
for new and developing

public leaders

Developing Tomorrow’s Leaders Today

PFLA is an innovative professional development program that 
combines the latest in leadership and financial management training. 
Program curriculum is both timely and relevant, providing a unique 
focus on how legal frameworks and human interactions come to play 
in working across diverse levels of public organizations.

Please check out our new program, the Public Finance 
Leadership Academy, at  https://cviog.uga.edu/pfla

To download a PFLA application, please visit  
https://cviog.uga.edu/_resources/documents/training-and-education/

pfla-application.pdf

THE DEADLINE TO APPLY IS SEPTEMBER 1, 2023!



2023–2024 PFLA COHORT SCHEDULE

October 16 PFLA Kick-Off (UGA-Athens)

October 17–18 Leadership and Effective Communication

November 9 Government Structure and Operations/ 
Internal Control

December 4 Public Human Resource Management

January 18 Treasury Management and Cash Flow Forecasting

February 7 Advanced Debt Issuance

February 15 Economic Development

March 5 Budgeting for Long-Term Sustainability

March 13 Millage Rate Process

April 3 Data Visualization and Creating Dashboards

April 17–18 Preparing the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

May 2 Preparing for the Audit

May 3 PFLA Graduation

A SPECIALIZED CURRICULUM Focus Areas emphasize next-level skills in navigating government functions and services and offer
participants the opportunity to apply the interrelated components of internal control to mitigate risks 
inherent in the cycle of financial management. Advanced leadership analysis and training is woven 
into each piece of the curriculum. 

PROGRAM FOCUS AREAS

The Cycle of Financial Management encompasses 
financial management topics that include Budget; Capital 
Improvement Planning; Revenues and Taxation; Debt 
Administration and Management; Treasury Management; 
Accounting and Financial Reporting; and Auditing

To earn a Public Finance Leadership Academy certificate, 
participants must complete 82 program hours through a 
variety of instructional activities covering the program’s core 
curriculum. 

PREREQUISITE:  Successful completion of the Level II Finance 
Officer Certification or completion of Level I with progress 
towards Level II; alternatively, candidates who hold certain 
financial professional designations: Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA), Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM), 
Certified Public Finance Officer (CPFO) will be eligible 
for consideration without meeting the Level I and Level II 
requirement.

ASSESSMENTS:  pre and post assessment; and a Capstone 
project. The Capstone project is intended to demonstrate the 
participant’s ability to apply the skills and knowledge acquired 
during the program as well as provide a direct benefit to their 
government. 

CLASS SIZE:  a cohort of up to 15 participants

INSTRUCTIONAL DELIVERY:  a blended approach offering 
virtual-live, face-to-face, and hybrid learning experiences; 
customize your training experience to meet your needs. Our 
UGA classrooms are equipped with cameras and technology 
that will provide remote participants the opportunity to interact 
with the instructor and their peers as if they were in the 
classroom on campus. 

RECOGNITION:  Upon successful completion of the program, 
participants will receive a certificate of achievement issued 
by the Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the Georgia 
Government Finance Officers Association.

COST:  $2,799

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

A detailed list of sessions is available at https://cviog.uga.edu/
training-and-education/financial-training/pfla-curriculum.html.

Cohort participants will kick off this year’s program in Athens with a 
3-day/2-night stay at the University of Georgia Center for Continuing
Education & Hotel; this stay is included in the registration fee of
$2,799. On day one cohort participants will arrive in Athens the
afternoon of October 16, 2023, to begin their journey. Later that
evening, participants will have an opportunity to network and get to
know their peers before enjoying a banquet-style dinner with an action
packed agenda and featured keynote speaker. Days two and three will
be devoted to a discussion on the topic, “Leadership and Effective
Communication.” Participants will depart from the Georgia Center at
4:00pm on October 18.





























PO Box 1325 ● Pine Lake, GA 30072 ● 404-999-4901  
www.pinelakega.net 

 

Memo 
DATE: April 21, 2023 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: ChaQuias Thornton 

RE: FY2023 Budget Amendment 

 
Please see the attached FY2023 Budget Amendment (Resolution R-10-2023), as proposed.  The 
budgetary amendments are presented to account for the following: 
 

Expense Increase 
Funding for tuition and travel expense cost for Public Finance Leadership Academy  $2,962 
011.523700 – Education and Training 
 
Funding for Juneteenth 2023 event cost -           $300 
011.531108 – Juneteenth Event 
 
Total Increase           $3,262 
 
Expenditure Decrease 
Decrease in funding for extended absence of accountant      ($361) 
011.521290 
 
Decrease in funding for non-placement of court clerk position   
012.511200 – Regular – Full-time                  ($2,696) 
012.512300 – FICA            ($167) 
012.512300 – Medicare          ($  38) 
 
Total Decrease                     (3,262) 

 
As proposed, total increase of $3,262 is offset by total decrease of ($3,262), with a net increase in 
FY2023 budget of $0. 
 
Please let me know if you should have any questions/concerns regarding the information provided 
within this correspondence. 
 
Thank you, 
CMThornton 



THEREFORE, be is resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Pine Lake, Georgia, that the following amendment

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Allocation

0.00 0.00 - 

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION

ADMINISTRATION

523700 Education and Training 2,962.00

531108 Juneteenth Event 300.00

521290 Professional Services (reduction in pay for accountant) 361.00

COURT

511200 Regular Full-time (Jan/Feb cost for non-placement/clerk) 2,696.00

512200 FICA 167.00

512300 Medicare 38.00

POLICE

511200 Regular Full-time (Jan cost for non-placement/clerk)

512200 FICA

512300 Medicare

3,262.00 3,262.00 - 

Sum Total 

Rev/Exp                                    

           -   

Melanie Hammet ChaQuias M. Thornton

Mayor City Manager/Acting City Clerk

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

to the general fund budget be made this                 day of                         , 2023.

GENERAL FUND REVENUES

RESOLUTION #R-10-2023

A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of Pine Lake, Georgia

WHEREAS, the FY2022 local budget for the City of Pine Lake, Georgia was adopted in December 13, 2023; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend such budget now;


	04-25-2023 Agenda Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	04-11-2023  DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Memo - Swearing-in_Public Safety Reserve Officers.pdf
	Memo - Appointment to MAPS.pdf
	Memo - Alcohol Privilege License Application - Mangos.pdf
	Alcohol License App_Mangos_Redacted_cmt.pdf
	AFFIDAVIT 330-474330_Mangos Alcohol License App.pdf
	Memo - Juneteenth Update and Request for Funding.pdf
	Memo PFLA Request.pdf
	pfla-flyer (1).pdf
	20230421_160037.pdf
	Memo - Resolution R-10-2023 FY2023 Budget Amendment.pdf
	Resolution R-10-2023 FY2023 Budget Amendment.pdf



